Walterboro City Council

City Hall

June 6, 2023

Minutes

A Regular Meeting of Walterboro City Council was held at City Hall on Tuesday May 2, 2023, at 6:15 P.M., with Mayor Bill Young presiding.

<u>Present</u>: Joined in the meeting were: Mayor Bill Young. Councilmembers: Carl Brown, Judy Bridge, Paul Siegel, James Broderick, Greg Pryor, and Ladson Fishburne. City Manager Jeff Molinari, Assistant City Manager Ryan McLeod, City Clerk Adrienne Nettles, Finance Director Amy Risher, Utilities Director Wayne Crosby, City Attorney Brown McLeod, and Hybrid Engineer Doug Clary.

Call to Order:

With the above-mentioned Councilmembers present, Mayor Young called the meeting to order, and invited everyone to join in as he gave the invocation. Councilmember Siegel led the Pledge of Allegiance to our flag.

Public Input on Agenda Items:

Ms. Juanita Harvey stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council I know we are not on the agenda, but we would like to bring to your attention some issues. There is a proposed night club coming into our community. We, the members of the community, ask that when this is presented for a permit that you consider the area of the nightclub. The community is in an uproar over this.

Councilmember Brown asked what type of club is it?

Ms. Harvey answered we have been told it will be a nightclub or gentlemen's club.

Councilmember Pryor asked is there a place he is going to move into or is he going to build?

Ms. Harvey answered it is a tin building on Henderson Street.

Mayor Young stated they will have to get permits and meet required zoning requirements, but we will investigate this. Thank you for making us aware of it.

Presentations:

1. Dana Cheney, Keep Walterboro Beautiful - Great American Cleanup and Keep Walterboro Beautiful Litter Stats.

Mr. Cheney stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council the Great American Clean up is the nations largest clean up. This year Keep Walterboro Beautiful focused on three programs. Through a \$10,000 grant from Keep America Beautiful we were able to add azaleas and camellias to our parks as well as beautification to our police annex. Keep Walterboro Beautiful also participated in this year's Family Fun Day at the middle school, and we participated in the Rice Festival by handing out brochures on the Adopt-a-Street Program. This year's litter collecting was a great success. On March 31st, the Colleton County High School National Honor Society totaling 80 students and adults collected 90 bags of trash weighing 1,350 pounds of trash in 4 hours and walked a total of 27 miles. On Earth Day, our city employees collected 59 bags for a total of 835 pounds. Our Parks Department and Public Works Department cleaned up 2 huge dumpsters for a total of 3,500 pounds. Three members of City Council, councilmembers Broderick, Pryor, and Siegel completed the yearly index. I carried these gentlemen around the streets for 54 miles. This year's index was 1.4, one being the best. In 2019 it was at 1.19, and 2020 it was 1.46. I think we can say a clean city is a happy city.

Public Hearings:

- 1. Ordinance # 2023-06, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CITY GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 AND MATTERS RELATING THERETO (Second and Final Reading).
- 2. <u>Ordinance # 2023-07</u>, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CITY ENTERPRISE FUND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 AND MATTERS RELATING THERETO (Second and Final Reading).

Councilmember Bridge stated I want to thank our City Manager and Finance Director and all department heads who have put fourth the effort to make good sound decisions about the budget. The following is the budget summary:

Budget Summary:

- \$13,506,158 total City Budget.
- \$8,479,534 General Fund Budget.
- \$5,026,624 Enterprise Fund Budget.
- No ad valorem property tax increase.
- No business license rate increase.
- Proposed increase in water bi-monthly minimum charges on large meters (AWWA standards).
- Proposed 5% increase in sewer volumetric rates.
- Proposed \$1.00 bi-monthly increase in facility charge for sewer the current charge is \$5.00 for in-city customers.
- Proposed increase for in-city water taps to cover the cost of installation.
- Proposed \$3 bi-monthly increase in commercial sanitation charges the current charge is \$37. Residential collection charges will remain \$30 bi-monthly.
- 1% increase in the employer portion of state retirement (Per PEBA, SCRS increases to 18.56% and PORS increases to 21.24%). The 1% credit for employers' retirement system contributions is funded in the House FY 2023-2024 budget. This will be the final incremental rate increase that began in 2017.
- Workers' Compensation (SCMIT) rates increased by 39%.
- Property and casualty insurance (SCMIRF) increased by 15%.
- Proposed 1.5% cost of living adjustment for city employees.
- Proposed \$50 Christmas bonus increase for full-time and part-time employees.
- Increased gas and oil line items throughout entire budget.

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council I am going to run through each of the departments and highlight some items in the budget.

Mayor and City Council

- November 2023 City Election.
- \$35,000 appropriation to Lowcountry Regional Airport.

City Manager

• Status quo.

Finance

• Vehicle allowance for Finance Director.

Public Works

- Purchase of yard debris truck (USDA grant) will take delivery in 2024-2025.
- Purchase of LED reader board sign (Palmetto Pride/SCMIT/SCMIRF grants).

Planning and Development

• \$25,000 allocated for demolition of substandard properties.

Police

• Two (2) new patrol vehicles (USDA grant).

<u>Judicial</u>

• Status quo.

Fire

- Reclassified three (3) Fire Fighter/Driver Operator positions to three (3) Fire Lieutenant positions.
- Debt Service on 2023 Pumper truck with equipment.

Parks

- Converted two (2) part-time positions into one (1) full-time position.
- Contracting out maintenance of landscaping at exits 53/57/loop project.
- Ventrac ballfield renovator and groomer plus 3 pt hitch conversion for tractor (USDA Grant).
- Purchase two pickup trucks (USDA Grant).

Tourism

• Main Street South Carolina expenses.

Walterboro Wildlife Center

• Status quo.

<u>Water</u>

- Increase for chemicals due to rising material costs.
- Continue to purchase new radio read meters.
- Asphalt roller and trailer (USDA grant).
- Service truck (USDA grant).
- Pickup truck (USDA grant).

Utility Support

• Status quo.

Sanitation

• Residential garbage truck – will take delivery in 2024-2025 (USDA grant).

Sewer

• Status quo.

Sewer Support

• Status quo.

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated that concludes my remarks on the General Fund and Enterprise Budget.

3. <u>Ordinance # 2023-08</u>, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WALTERBORO, SOUTH CAROLINA, AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE UTILITY SUPPORT DEPARTMENT (Second and Final Reading).

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council you have in your agenda packet an updated fee schedule which reflects the increases that Councilmember Bridge mentioned in her report. Those proposed adjustments will need to be codified by ordinance and put into the City Code of Ordinances.

Approval of Minutes:

Upon motion of Councilmember Broderick, Seconded by Councilmember Brown, the following minutes were unanimously approved.

- 1. Regular Meeting May 2, 2023.
- 2. Special Called Meeting May 16, 2023.

Old Business:

1. <u>Ordinance # 2023-06</u>, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CITY GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 (Second and final Reading).

Motion: Councilmember Brown; Seconded by Councilmember Fishburne

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

2. <u>Ordinance # 2023-07</u>, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CITY ENTERPRISE FUND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 AND MATTERS RELATING THERETO (Second and Final Reading).

Motion: Councilmember Pryor; Seconded by Councilmember Fishburne

Discussion: None Carries: All ayes

3. <u>Ordinance # 2023-08</u>, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WALTERBORO, SOUTH CAROLINA, AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE UTILITY SUPPORT DEPARTMENT (Second and Final reading).

Motion: Councilmember Siegel; Seconded by Councilmember Bridge

Discussion: None Carries: All ayes

New Business:

1. Ordinance # 2023-09, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF WALTERBORO, SOUTH CAROLINA, TO PROVIDE FOR CHANGES IN THE ZONING DISTRICTS OF THE CITY OF WALTERBORO BY CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF ONE PARCEL OF LAND DESIGNATED AS TMS # 147-14-00-056, LOT 2 FROM HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (HCD) TO MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (MDR) (Introduction and First Reading).

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council you have in your agenda packet Ordinance # 2023-09. On April 18th the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing to consider a change in the zoning classification for a portion of TMS # 147-14-00-056, to change the zoning classification from Highway Commercial District to Medium Density Residential. It is my understanding that the owner wishes to re-plat the lot and has not been assigned a new TMS number yet from the county. As you see in your agenda packet there is a plat included delineated as lot 2. The property surrounding lot 2 is all Medium Density Residential. The Planning Commission passed a resolution to approve the zoning recommendations. We have our Assistant City Manager Ryan McLeod who provides staff support for the Planning Commission who can answer any questions.

Councilmember Pryor asked what does the gentlemen want to do with the property?

Assistant City Manager McLeod stated that it will more than likely be a single-family duplex.

Motion: Councilmember Broderick; Seconded by Councilmember Bridge

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

2. Consideration of rescheduling the July 4, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting.

The Regular City Council Meeting will be rescheduled to July 11, 2023.

Motion: Councilmember Brown; Seconded by Councilmember Fishburne

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

3. Request to waive business license fees for Juneteenth Festival.

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council you have in your agenda packet a letter from Ms. Latosia Simmons requesting that the city waive the business license requirements for the vendors associated with the Juneteenth event.

Motion: Councilmember Broderick; Seconded by Councilmember Pryor

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

City Manager's Report:

1. Consideration of bids for Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project.

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council you have in your agenda packet a memo and supporting documentation on the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project. On April 11, 2023 we held a bid opening for phases 1 and 2 of the City's Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Project. We received a total of four (4) bids. This project will expand the capacity of the City's Wastewater Treatment Plant from 2.624 MGD to 5.625 MGD. We have accepted the low bidder, The Harper Corporation – General Contractors out of Johns Island, SC in the amount of \$36,631,400.00. We have several different funding sources that we have pieced together. We are receiving \$25,668,446 from EDA. We are allocating \$3,918,000.00 from the 2021 Waste/Sewer Revenue Bond and we will also have to do an additional 2023 Water/Sewer Bond. We are hoping to bring that to City Council this summer in the amount of \$7,044,954. I would also like to take this time to recognize our Finance Director Amy Risher, Utilities Director Wayne Crosby, and our engineer Doug Clary. As City Council is aware the bids were

much higher than we anticipated. They have worked the last 2 months trying to figure out how to get the project done and how to get it funded. I would also like to thank Michelle Knight with LCOG. She was able to assist us with getting an additional \$10,000,000.00 from EDA. Mr. Doug Clary from Hybrid Engineering is here to give a summary of the project. I would also like to ask when Council makes a motion if you could make it contingent upon approval of EDA.

Mr. Doug Clary stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council it is a pleasure to be here. We have detailed the proposed site plan on the left and the proposed schematic of how the water will flow through the plant. This is a comprehensive expansion and improvement project that will take care of influent pumping, grit removal, biological treatment, and tertiary filtration. We will get away from chlorine disinfectant and start using ultraviolet disinfectant. We undertook what I would characterize as the most intense bidder outreach program that we have undertaken. We know about the pressure on the economy right now. The city was able to attract bidders from all over the Southeastern United States. We undertook a full day bid opening conference. We even postponed the bid opening twice to give these guys as much time as they needed. We issued 6 addenda throughout the bidding process and every bidder's question got answered. We feel that The Harper Corporation is a fine company. We feel that this is the time to move forward and start the project. If we were to reject everything and start over, we could end up with a much higher bid.

Motion: Councilmember Brown; Seconded by Councilmember Bridge

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

2. Consideration of bids for Walterboro Wildlife Sanctuary Boardwalk Replacement Project – Canoe Launch and Hartzog Trail.

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council you have in your agenda packet a memo and supporting documentation of the first phase of the City's Boardwalk Replacement Project. This will replace the Canoe Launch and Hartzog Trail. We had a bid opening on May 15, 2023, and the city received four (4) bids. The project will include the demolition of 1,405 feet of existing boardwalk and two bridges. The construction of 12,996 square feet of PermaTrak boardwalk. The construction of two new bridges, and a block retaining wall as recommended by the City's engineer. The city has \$2,431,073.55 available for the project coming from:

- 2022 A-Tax /H-Tax Revenue Bond \$2,117,747.55
- Undiscovered SC Grant \$200,000.00
- Tornado Funds \$110,826.00
- FROGS Account \$2,500.00

City Staff recommends awarding the contract to Wildwood Contractors (Walterboro, SC) in the amount of \$1,887,794.70 to be paid from allocating the listed funds. City staff asks for Councils favorable consideration of this request.

Motion: Councilmember Broderick; Seconded by Councilmember Fishburne

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes.

3. Water and Wastewater Capacity Fee Study

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council I have attached a proposal from Willdan Financial Services in the amount of \$29,500.00 to conduct a water and wastewater capacity fee study. This study will assist the city's efforts in funding future capital needs of the City's water and sewer system due to anticipated residential, commercial, and industrial growth. The study will be funded from the 2021 Water/Sewer Revenue Bond. City staff asks for Council's favorable consideration of the request.

Motion: Councilmember Bridge; Seconded by Councilmember Broderick

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

4. Judicial and City Prosecutor Reappointments

City Manager Jeff Molinari stated Mr. Mayor and members of City Council you have in your agenda packet the Judicial reappointments and City Prosecutor reappointment.

The term for Municipal Judge Morrison Payne expires on June 30, 2023. Judge Payne would like to continue to serve as Municipal Judge. If reappointed, her term will run for two (2) years and will expire on June 30, 2025.

The term for Associate Municipal Judge, Tim Rowe expires on June 30, 2023. Judge Rowe would like to continue to serve as Associate Municipal Judge. If reappointed, his term will run for two (2) years and will expire on June 30, 2025.

The term for City Prosecutor, Maryann Blake expires on June 30, 2023. Ms. Blake would like to continue to serve as City Prosecutor. If reappointed, her term will run for one (1) year and will expire on June 30, 2024.

Motion: Councilmember Pryor; Seconded by Councilmember Fishburne

Discussion: None Carried: All ayes

A motion was made to go into Executive Session by Councilmember Fishburne, seconded by Councilmember Pryor. Mayor Young explained that City Council would be going into Executive Session to discuss Personnel Matters – Boards and Commission Appointments, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, and Keep Walterboro Beautiful.

Executive Session:

- 1. Personnel Matters Board and Commission Appointments:
 - a. Historic Preservation Commission.
 - b. Planning Commission.
 - c. Keep Walterboro Beautiful

A motion to come out of Executive Session was made by Councilmember Broderick, seconded by Councilmember Pryor, all in favor motion carries.

A motion to appoint Crystal Herrington to the Keep Walterboro Beautiful Board and Carmella Rosenburg to the Historic Preservation Commission was made by Councilmember Brown, seconded by Councilmember Pryor, all in favor motion carries.

There being no further business to consider, a motion to adjourn was made by Mayor Young, seconded by Councilmember Bridge, and passed unanimously. Mayor Young adjourned the meeting at 7:15 P.M. Notice of the meeting was distributed with the agenda packets, to all local media, posted on City Hall bulletin board and posted on the City's website at least twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.

Respectfully,

Adrienne Nettles City Clerk

Approved: August 1, 2023